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June 15, 2021

MARK PESTRELLA, Director

ADDRESS ALL CORRESPONDENCE TO:
P.O. BOX 1460

ALHAMBRA, CALIFORNIA 91802-1460

IN REPLY PLEASE

REFER TO FILE: EP-5

Mr. Chris Coyle
General Manager
Republic Services, Inc.
Sunshine Canyon Landfill
14747 San Fernando Road
Sylmar, CA 91342-1021

SUNSHINE CANYON CITY/COUNTY LANDFILL
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. 00-194-(5)
AUTHORIZATION TO IMPORT CLEAN SOIL

Dear Mr. Coyle:

Public Works has reviewed Republic Services' revised soil importation request, dated
May 21, 2021, (Enclosure 1) and supporting information. Republic submitted the revised
request in response to Public Works letter of November 11, 2020, and as further
discussed with Public Works on February 23, 2021. The revised request seeks
Public Works approval to import clean soil at a maximum rate of 2,500 tons per day to the
Sunshine Canyon Landfill, six days per week (Monday – Saturday) for the next five years.

Your request for importation of clean soil for beneficial use at the Landfill is hereby
approved pursuant to Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 00-194-(5), Conditions 1.D and 23.E,
which requires Republic Services to obtain prior authorization from Public Works prior to
importation and acceptance of clean soil material for beneficial use.

This authorization is being granted in order to allow the Landfill to import soil to the site
for beneficial uses. Based on your submittal, the volume of on-site soil stockpile will be
exhausted in 2021 and importation of soil is necessary for effective landfilling operations
at the site. This approval is subject to the following conditions:

1. The quantity of soil to be imported shall not exceed the following:

o 2,500 tons per day or 15,000 tons per week
o 3.9 million tons total for the 5-year duration of the project.
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o The quantity of soil imported (tonnage) shall be included as part of the total
permitted daily and weekly tonnage capacity of materials (Solid Waste, Inert
Debris, and Beneficial Use Materials). Pursuant to the CUP, in no event
shall the daily tonnage of all materials received by the Landfill exceed
12,100 tons on any given day, six working days per week, nor the total
permitted weekly tonnage limit of 72,600 tons per week.

2. The soil importation shall occur during the normal operating hours of the site from
Monday to Saturday.

3. All incoming and departing truck routes associated with this soil importation project
shall be limited to the same route from the Interstate 5 Freeway to the Landfill as
do loads of refuse, by taking the Roxford Exit and San Fernando Road to the
Landfill entrance.

4. The imported soil shall be placed adjacent to the working area for immediate usage
in a designated location, or if soil is not needed at the working area, it shall be
taken to a designated stockpile location as defined in the Landfill's Joint Technical
Document. Additionally, all stockpile areas shall be vegetated if left unused longer
than 180 days and will require soil stockpile grading and drainage plans to be
provided within 30 days from the date of this letter for further review and approval
(pursuant to CUP Condition 37).

5. The operator shall comply with the currently approved Fugitive Dust Control
Program to minimize dust resulting from the importation project.

6. The operator shall follow all applicable local, State, and Federal standards and
requirements for the importation of clean soil from off-site sources, including but
not limited to, the approved Waste Load Checking Program and the
Waste Discharge Requirements issued by the California Regional Water Quality
Control Board to ensure the imported soil's quality is acceptable under this
program and permit.

7. Republic shall keep records of all soil materials received, including but not limited
to, source of imported soil, quantities accepted/imported and use of onsite soil and
purpose, delivery schedules, usage schedules, stockpiled, beneficially used, and
disposed of.

8. The operator shall submit monthly summaries of these records on a semi-annual
basis, including a stockpile location map, to Public Works Environmental Programs
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Division for the duration of this project. The first semi-annual report shall be
submitted six months from the date of this letter.

9. The Director of Public Works, at his/her sole discretion, may rescind or terminate
this approval if Public Works determines that any of the conditions of approval has
been violated and/or that such termination is necessary to protect public health,
safety, welfare, and/or the environment.

If you have any questions, please contact me or your staff may contact
Mr. Gabriel Esparza at (626) 458-4946 or gesparza@dpw.lacounty.gov, Monday through
Thursday, 7:00 a.m. to 5:30 p.m.

Very truly yours,

MARK PESTRELLA, PE
Director of Public Works

MARTINS AIYETIWA
Senior Civil Engineer
Environmental Programs Division

MA:rw
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Enc.

cc: Department of Regional Planning (Edgar De La Torre, Alex Garcia, Maria Masis)
City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning (Tiffany Butler, Nicholas Hendricks,
Lisa Webber)
Sunshine Canyon Landfill Community Advisory Committee (Wayde Hunter)
Sunshine Canyon Landfill Technical Advisory Committee (Lisa Webber,
Jon Sanabria)
Sunshine Canyon Landfill Local Enforcement Agency (Dorcas Hanson-Lugo,
Shikari Nakagawa-Ota, David Thompson)
Each Member of the Los Angeles County Solid Waste Management Committee
Integrated Waste Management Task Force



SUNSHINE CANYON 

Landfill 

May 21, 2021 

Mr. Martin Aiyetiwa 

14747 San Fernando Road 

Sylmar, CA 91342 

Senior Civil Engineer - Environmental Programs Division 

900 South Fremont Avenue 

Alhambra, CA 91803-1331 

Subject: Clean Soil Material Importation and Stockpile - Sunshine Canyon City/County Landfill 

Conditional Use Permit No. 00-194-(5) 

Dear Mr. Aiyetiwa: 

In response to the last soil importation meeting with the County of Los Angeles Department of 

Public Works (DPW) on February 23, 2021, Sunshine Canyon Landfill (SCL) would like to provide 

the following responses and request the department's approval to import 2,500 tons per day 

of clean soil; 6 days per week (Monday - Saturday ) for the next 5 years (2026). 

Please see Republic's response to your Specific Comments: 

1. The submittal references, "the soil analysis data from different projects." Are these

different projects referred to "Enclosure 3 Melrose Triangle - Analytical Report" and

"Enclosure 3 Purple Line?" are they the only source of imported soil? Or will there be

other sources? What is the intention for Enclosure 2? Please clarify.

Response: Enclosure 3, Melrose Triangle and Purple Line Analytical Report, are two

different projects obtained by the site but soils have not been received due to the delay

in DPW's approval. We are constantly searching for soil sources as they become

available so these two projects will not be the only source of soil for the site and may

no longer be available to the site. The intent of Enclosure 2 was labelled to show the

proposed year 2020 on-site haul route for the importation of clean dirt and the

stockpile area. It also shows the fill area for the build-out of CC4-P3. The haul routes

will change from year to year based on the areas that need soil. It is not feasible to

show haul routes for future years as there are too many variables (waste diversion

programs; SB 1383; jurisdictional disposal generation rates; the obtaining or loss of

disposal agreements with various customers) dictating how fast the landfill will build

out. However, we can provide information on projected annual onsite haul routes in

SCL's semi-annual reports to DPW.












































































